Offering Memorandum: Part II of Offering Document (Exhibit A to Form
C)

TriAgenics, Inc.
525 SW Umatilla Ave, Suite 102
Redmond, OR 97756
https://triagenics.com/

Up to $4,000,002.00 in Series A-3 Preferred Stock at $3.00
Minimum Target Amount: $15,000.00

A crowdfunding investment involves risk. You should not invest any funds in this
offering unless you can afford to lose your entire investment.

In making an investment decision, investors must rely on their own examination of
the issuer and the terms of the offering, including the merits and risks involved. These
securities have not been recommended or approved by any federal or state securities
commission or regulatory authority. Furthermore, these authorities have not passed
upon the accuracy or adequacy of this document.

The U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission does not pass upon the merits of any
securities offered or the terms of the offering, nor does it pass upon the accuracy or
completeness of any offering document or literature.

These securities are offered under an exemption from registration; however, the U.5.
Securities and Exchange Commission has not made an independent determination
that these securities are exempt from registration.



Company:

Company: TriAgenics, Inc.

Address: 525 SW Umatilla Ave, Suite 102, Redmond, OR 97756
State of Incorporation: DE

Date Incorporated: January 15, 2013

Terms:

Equity

Offering Minimum: $15,000.00 | 5,000 shares of Series A-3 Preferred Stock
Offering Maximum: $4,000,002.00 | 1,333,334 shares of Series A-3 Preferred Stock
Type of Security Offered: Series A-3 Preferred Stock

Purchase Price of Security Offered: $3.00

Minimum Investment Amount (per investor): $300.00

*Maximum Number of Shares Offered subject to adjustment for bonus shares. See
Bonus info below.

Investment Incentives and Bonuses*
Time-Based:

Friends and Family Early Birds - Invest $25,000+ within the first 72 hours and receive
10% bonus shares

Early Bird Bonus - Invest $1,000 within the first two weeks and receive 5% bonus
shares

Amount-Based:
$25,000+ | Tier 1 - Invest $25,000+ and receive 5% Bonus Shares.
$100,000+ | Tier 2 - Invest $100,000+ and receive 10% Bonus Shares.

Lovyaltv Bonus:

Existing shareholders of TriAgenics who have expressed interest in making an
additional investment in this round and authorized TriAgenics to give their contact
information to StartEngine will receive 10% bonus shares.

*In order to receive perks from an investment, one must submit a single investment in
the same offering that meets the minimum perk requirement. Bonus shares from perks
will not be granted if an investor submits multiple investments that, when combined,
meet the perk requirement. All perks occur when the offering is completed.

The 10% StartEngine Owners' Bonus

TriAgenics, Inc. will offer 10% additional bonus shares for all investments committed



by investors that are eligible for the StartEngine Crowdfunding Inc. OWNer's bonus.

This means eligible StartEngine shareholders will receive a 10% bonus for any shares
they purchase in this offering. For example, if you buy 100 shares of Series A-3
Preferred Stock at $3.00 / share, you will receive 110 Series A-3 Preferred Stock shares,
meaning you'll own 110 shares for $300. Fractional shares will not be distributed and
share bonuses will be determined by rounding down to the nearest whole share.

This 10% Bonus is only valid during the investor's eligibility period. Investors eligible
for this bonus will also have priority if they are on a waitlist to invest and the company
surpasses its maximum funding goal. They will have the first opportunity to invest
should room in the offering become available if prior investments are canceled or fail.

Investors will receive the highest single bonus they are eligible for among the time-
based and amount-based bonuses. Eligible investors will also receive the Owner’s
Bonus and Loyalty Bonus in addition to the aforementioned bonus.

The Company and its Business

Company Overview
Company Overview

TriAgenics, Inc. ("TriAgenics” of the "Company") is a pre-revenue company that is
working to provide a safe, effective, and simple way for dental professionals to
prevent the broad array of diseases, extensive damage, and lifelong hazards caused by
wisdom teeth. TriAgenics has developed a minimally invasive dental procedure
designed for children ages 6-12 in order to prevent wisdom teeth from ever forming.
The procedure is called Zero3 TBA or 3TBA (for 3rd molar Tooth Bud Ablation). There
are no stitches, and the procedure is expected to have no significant recovery time or
significant complications, which means no painful infections or dry sockets that can
follow wisdom teeth extractions. The best part of 3TBA is that patients are expected to
have dramatically improved lifelong outcomes compared to the traditional practice of
allowing these troublesome teeth to form and then having them removed later in life.

Business Model

Provided that 3TBA receives clearance from the U.S. Food and Drug Administration
(the “FDA™), TriAgenics’ proposed business model is analogous to how Align
Technology fabricates and sells its Invisalign clear braces. Licensed dentists will send
TriAgenics patient x-rays, an impression of their patient’s teeth, and a prescription for
5TBA treatment. TriAgenics will then fabricate patient-specific 35TBA guides and sell
them to the prescribing dentist for an estimated $350 per tooth bud treated. The
dentist will use the custom guides to deliver the 3TBA treatment for each tooth bud,
instead of waiting for these teeth to form and cause problems later.

3TBA Procedure

Below is a description of the steps involved in the 3TBA procedure, based on the



animal studies performed by the Company:

To start the procedure, a patient will be given a local anesthetic, similar to what the
patient would experience in having a one-surface dental filling. Once the patient is
numb, the custom 3TBA guide will be placed on the patient’s teeth. Next, the 3TBA
micro-ablation probe will be inserted in the guide and create a small puncture in the
tooth bud tissue. A 60- to 90-second micro-ablation cycle will then be activated for
each tooth bud treated. The ablation process will gently warm each tooth bud from
the center outwards in a controlled fashion to block wisdom tooth formation. The
Company estimates that from start to finish, 3TBA treatment of 4 wisdom tooth buds
will take approximately 30 minutes. By comparison, the surgical removal of 4 wisdom
teeth requires IV sedation, typically takes 1 hour, and can take longer if the teeth are
in a difficult position or there are unexpected complications.

Corporate Structure

The Company was initially formed as TriAgenics, LLC, an Oregon limited liability
company, on 1/15/2013 and converted to a Delaware corporation on 9/22,/2017.

Intellectual Property (“IP”):

TriAgenics has 13 issued U.S. patents and 5 pending U.S. patent applications directed
at therapeutic bud ablation. It has also filed 2 U.S. nonprovisional patent applications
that claim benefit/priority to 2 earlier U.S. provisional patent applications directed at
an ablation probe system. In addition, TriAgenics has 9 issued foreign patents (5 in
Australia, 3 in Canada, and 1 in Mexico), as well as 5 pending foreign patent
applications in Europe, Australia, Canada, and Mexico. Finally, TriAgenics has other IP
that it has developed, including U.S. trademarks for Zero3® and TriAgenics®.

Competitors and Industry
Competitors

Other than painful wisdom teeth extractions later in life, TriAgenics has very little
competition. The Company has established a solid IP position, with more than 20 U.S.
and international patents on its technology.

Industry

Every year, more than 5 million patients in the U.S. spend over $3 billion to have
wisdom teeth extracted or have painful wisdom tooth problems, such as gum
infections and cysts, treated. Unfortunately, this cost does not include the burden of
missing an average of 3 days of work or school after having wisdom teeth removed.
Instead, when wisdom teeth are prevented from forming, this pain, cost, and recovery
time are eliminated. Treating problems associated with wisdom teeth is a major
headache for dentists, hygienists, and their patients. Most wisdom teeth - more than
80% - are extracted by oral surgery specialists. Parents and dentists alike have told the
Company that they are seeking a safer, complication-free alternative to the teenage
rite of passage of having wisdom teeth removed. 3TBA is designed to eliminate the



pain and risks associated with forming wisdom teeth.

Source for $3 billion spent on wisdom teeth extraction:
https://www.nationaloralhealthconference.com/docs/presentations,/2012/05-
02/Tay% 20Friedman.pdf

Source for 80% of wisdom teeth are extracted:
https://boiseoralsurgery.com/blog/should-i-get-all-four-wisdom-teeth-out-at-once/

Source for 5 million patients: https:/www.vox.com/2015/1/135/7539985/wisdom-teeth-
necessary

Source for time spent away from work or school: https://unionoralsurgery.com/how-
long-will-i-miss-school-or-work-after-having-my-wisdom-teeth-removed-monroe-
nc-mint-hill-nc/

Current Stage and Roadmap

Current Stage

TriAgenics has demonstrated the efficacy of its Zero3 TBA technology in live animal
trials, with 100% success in preventing tooth formation. The trials were conducted on
swine because tooth buds in pigs are nearly identical in size to humans. The Company
completed pre-production prototype development and is now scaling manufacturing
of its Zero3 TBA product in preparation for applying to the FDA for premarket
clearance.

Product Description

The Zero3 TBA system consists of three components: a countertop micro-ablation
generator, a disposable handpiece with an integrated ablation probe, and a patient-
specific guide.

STBA Generator

The 3TBA generator is the principal component of the 3TBA system. It is designed to
be portable and powered by a laptop-type, low-voltage power supply for safety,
flexibility, and adaptability for international use. It incorporates a touch-screen color
display and a foot pedal to provide ease of use for the operator. The 3TBA generator
fits on top of a swing-arm dental unit for convenient operation in a dental office. The
generator design has been finalized for purposes of submission for FDA clearance, and
TriAgenics is working with the manufacturer to refine the shape and labeling of the
unit. TriAgenics has received its first 3TBA generator from the contract manufacturer.
Once it receives the next batch of 10 units, it plans to submit them for independent
safety certification as an electrical medical device, likely in the second quarter of 2025.

3TBA Handpiece

TriAgenics has designed and tested a single-use 3TBA micro-ablation probe, with the
probe integrated into a disposable plastic handpiece. It plans to package the



disposable handpiece inside a patient-specific, sterile-packaged treatment kit. The
operator will attach the handpiece to the generator in order to perform the 3TBA
procedure. TriAgenics anticipates ordering an initial run of handpieces from a
contract manufacturer.

STBA Guides

Finally, TriAgenics plans to produce patient-specific 3TBA guides that direct the
positioning of and hold the micro-ablation probe of the handpiece in place during the
3TBA procedure. The guide is designed to fit firmly on the patient’s teeth. The
operator will insert the micro-ablation handpiece into the guide and then activate the
60- to 90-second micro-ablation cycle for each tooth bud treated. TriAgenics plans to
have the 3TBA guides 3D-printed and then packaged in sterile-packaged treatment
kits. It envisions the treatment kit as a vacu-form plastic base with a Tyvek-style peel-
off cover. The Company plans to work on packaging and sterilization in the third
quarter of 2025,

Future Roadmap

The Company's goal is to obtain FDA clearance and then enter the dental market for
first sales in 2024.

Medical devices such as the Zero3 TBA technology are regulated by the U.S. Food and
Drug Administration (the “FDA”™), which has certain requirements for placing these
products in the market. In 2021, TriAgenics applied to the FDA for premarket
clearance of 3TBA, with the goal of obtaining approval for the technology as a novel
medical device. The FDA disapproved the Company's application, citing certain
deficiencies.

While reformulating its approach with the FDA, in 2022 TriAgenics applied for
approval to conduct human clinical trials of 3TBA in Australia as a way to collect
safety and effectiveness data. That application was also disapproved, citing
insufficient justification for trials on healthy children based on limited animal data.

After doing further research, TriAgenics has engaged an experienced regulatory
consultant to assist it with the FDA clearance process. The consultant has
recommended a different regulatory pathway. Instead of seeking clearance of the
technology as a novel medical device, the consultant has recommended that
TriAgenics submit a new application to the FDA seeking to demonstrate that 35TBA is
substantially equivalent to (i.e., as safe and effective as) an existing, legally marketed
medical device. An FDA order declaring 3TBA substantially equivalent would allow
TriAgenics to market the technology in the U.S. The regulatory consultant has advised
that the approval process for a substantially equivalent device is more streamlined
than for a novel device and that it is appropriate for 3TBA.

TriAgenics is preparing to submit a new application to the FDA. The timing of the FDA
clearance process is not in the Company’s control. Although the FDA usually makes
its determination within 90 days of submission, the Company has been advised that



the timeline will likely be closer to 120 days. Assuming that TriAgenics receives
clearance, it then plans to conduct human clinical trials in order to have specific
safety data to present before going to market. However, there is no assurance that
TriAgenics will receive FDA clearance or that human trials will be successful. If
TriAgenics does not receive FDA clearance of 3TBA, it will fail. See “Risk Factors.”

The Team

Officers and Directors

Name: Leigh E. Colby
Leigh E. Colby's current primary role is with the Issuer.
Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

e Position: President, CEO, Corporate Secretary, and Director
Dates of Service: September, 2017 - Present

Responsibilities: Manage the overall operations and vision of the Company.
Leigh receives an annual salary of $187,512.

Name: David Paul Watson
David Paul Watson’s current primary role is with the Issuer.
Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

e Position: COO and Director
Dates of Service: September, 2017 - Present
Responsibilities: Providing technical and operational expertise. David receives
an annual salary of $200,000.

Name: John Joseph Chopack, Jr.

John Joseph Chopack, Jr.'s current primary role is with Neoss, Inc. (dental products).
John Joseph Chopack, Jr. currently services an average of 2 hours per week in their role
with the [ssuer.

Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

¢ Position: Director
Dates of Service: February, 2018 - Present

Responsibilities: Member of the Board of Directors. John does not receive
compensation for his service as a director.

Other business experience in the past three years:



¢ Employer: Neoss, Inc. (dental products)
Title: Vice President Corporate Development
Dates of Service: December, 2020 - Present
Responsibilities: Corporate development

Other business experience in the past three years:

e Employer: Inspiros Ventures, LLC (medtech VC)
Title: Founder & Managing Partner
Dates of Service: March, 2016 - December, 2020
Responsibilities: Oversaw business development, operations, strategy, capital
formation, divestitures, mergers, and go-to-market strategy.

Name: [effrey Miles Jacobs

Jeffrey Miles Jacobs's current primary role is with STR Equity LLC (investment firm).
Jeffrey Miles Jacobs currently services an average of 2 hours per week in their role with
the Issuer.

Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

e Position: Director
Dates of Service: December, 2021 - Present
Responsibilities: Member of the Board of Directors. Jeffrey does not receive
compensation for his service as a director.

Other business experience in the past three years:

e Emplover: STR Equity LLC (investment firm)
Title: Investor/Advisor
Dates of Service: April, 2022 - Present
Responsibilities: Investor and advisor

Other business experience in the past three years:

e Emplover: Stradis Healthcare (medical device packaging)
Title: CEO and Co-Founder

Dates of Service: January, 2000 - January, 2021
Responsibilities: Served as founder and CEO

Name: David Scott Thrower

David Scott Thrower's current primary role is with uLab Systems, Inc. (dental
treatment plan software). David Scott Thrower currently services an average of 2 hours



per week in their role with the Issuer.
Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

¢ Position: Director
Dates of Service: December, 2020 - Present

Responsibilities: Member of the Board of Directors. David does not receive
compensation for his service as a director.

Other business experience in the past three years:

¢ Employer: uLab Systems, Inc. (dental treatment plan software)
Title: CCO

Dates of Service: March, 2020 - Present
Responsibilities: CCO

Name: George Shahin

George Shahin's current primary role is with Family Health Centers at NYU Langone
(healthcare provider). George Shahin currently services an average of 2 hours per week
in their role with the Issuer.

Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

e Position: Director
Dates of Service: February, 2018 - Present
Responsibilities: Member of the Board of Directors. George does not receive
compensation for his service as a director.

Other business experience in the past three years:

¢ Employer: Family Health Centers at NYU Langone (healthcare provider)
Title: Senior Medical Director of Quality & Safety
Dates of Service: February, 2020 - Present
Responsibilities: Trained gastroenterologist.

Other business experience in the past three years:

¢ Employer: Family Health Centers at NYU Langone (healthcare provider)
Title: Medical Director, Clinical Innovation
Dates of Service: February, 2011 - February, 2020
Responsibilities: Trained gastroenterologist.

Risk Factors



The SEC requires the company to identify risks that are specific to its business and its
financial condition. The company is still subject to all the same risks that all
companies in its business, and all companies in the economy, are exposed to. These
include risks relating to economic downturns, political and economic events and
technological developments (such as hacking and the ability to prevent hacking).
Additionally, early-stage companies are inherently more risky than more developed
companies. You should consider general risks as well as specific risks when deciding
whether to invest.

These are the risks that relate to the Company:

Uncertain Risk

An investment in the Company (also referred to as “we”, “us”, or “our”) involves a
high degree of risk and should be considered only by those who can afford the loss of
their entire investment. Furthermore, the purchase of any of the Series A-3 Preferred
Stock should be undertaken only by persons whose financial resources are sufficient to
enable them to retain an illiquid investment indefinitely. Each investor in the
Company should consider all of the information provided to such potential investor
regarding the Company as well as the following risk factors, in addition to the other
information listed in the Company’s Form C. The following risk factors are not
intended, and shall not be deemed to be, a complete description of the commercial
and other risks inherent in investment in the Company.

Our business projections are only projections

There can be no assurance that the Company will meet its projections. There can be
no assurance that the Company will be able to find sufficient demand for the 3TBA
product, that people will think it’s a better option than wisdom tooth extraction, or
that we will able to generate sufficient sales for the Company to make a profit and still
attract business.

Any valuation at this stage is difficult to assess

The valuation for the offering was established by the Company. Unlike listed
companies that are valued publicly through market-driven stock prices, the valuation
of private companies, especially early-stage companies, is difficult to assess and you
may risk overpaying for your investment.

The transferability of the Securities you are buying is limited

All shares of Series A-3 Preferred Stock purchased through this crowdfunding
campaign are subject to SEC limitations on transfer. This means that the stock you
purchase cannot be resold for a period of one year. The exception to this rule is if you
are transferring the stock back to the Company, to an “accredited investor,” as part of
an offering registered with the SEC, to a member of your family, to a trust created for
the benefit of your family, or in connection with your death or divorce.

Your investment could be illiquid for a long time

You should purchase shares of Series A-3 Preferred Stock only as a long-term
investment and be prepared to hold them for an indefinite period of time. For 12
months following your investment, there will be restrictions on how you can resell the



shares you receive. More importantly, there is no established market for these shares
and there may never be one. As a result, if you decide to sell your shares in the future,
you may not be able to find a buyer for them. The Company may be acquired by an
existing player in the health tech industry. However, an acquisition may never happen
or it may happen at a price that results in you losing money on this investment.

If the Company cannot raise sufficient funds it will not succeed

The Company is offering shares of its Series A-3 Preferred Stock in the amount of up
to $4,000,002.00 in this offering, and it may close on any investments that are made.
Even if the maximum amount is raised, the Company will likely need additional funds
in the future in order to grow. If it cannot raise those funds for whatever reason,
including reasons relating to the Company itself or the broader economy, it may not
survive. If the Company manages to raise only the minimum amount of funds sought,
it will need to find other sources of funding for some of the plans outlined in “Use of
Proceeds.”

We may not have enough capital as needed and may be required to raise more capital.
We anticipate needing access to credit in order to support our working capital
requirements as we grow. Although interest rates are relatively low, it is still a
difficult environment for obtaining credit on favorable terms. If we cannot obtain
credit when we need it, we could be forced to raise additional equity capital, modify
our growth plans, or take some other action. Issuing more equity will require bringing
on additional investors. Securing these additional investors could require pricing our
equity below its current price. If so, your investment could lose value as a result of this
additional dilution. In addition, even if the equity is not priced lower, your ownership
percentage would be decreased with the addition of more investors. If we are unable
to find additional investors willing to provide capital, then it is possible we will
choose to cease operations. In that case, the only asset remaining to generate a return
on your investment could be our intellectual property. Even if we are not forced to
cease operations, the unavailability of credit could result in the Company performing
below expectations, which could adversely affect the value of your investment.

Terms of subsequent financings may adversely impact your investment

We will likely need to engage in common stock, debt, or preferred stock financings in
the future, which may reduce the value of your investment in the Series A-3 Preferred
Stock. Interest on debt securities could increase costs and negatively affect operating
results. Preferred stock may be issued in additional series from time to time with such
designations, rights, preferences, and limitations as needed to raise capital. In
addition, if we need to raise more equity capital from the sale of additional stock,
institutional or other investors may negotiate terms that are more favorable than the
terms of your investment, and possibly a lower purchase price per share.

Management Discretion as to Use of Proceeds

QOur success will be substantially dependent upon the discretion and judgment of our
management team with respect to the application and allocation of the proceeds of
this offering. The use of proceeds described below is an estimate based on our current
business plan. However, we may find it necessary or advisable to re-allocate portions



of the net proceeds reserved for one category to another, and we will have broad
discretion in doing so.

Projections: Forward Looking Information

Any projections or forward-looking statements contained in this Form C regarding our
anticipated financial or operational performance are hypothetical and are based on
management's best estimate of the probable results of our future operations. Any such
projections will not have been reviewed by our independent accountants. We use
words such as "anticipates,” "expects,” "intends,” "plans,” "believes,” "estimates,” and
variations of these words and similar expressions to identify projections and forward-
looking statements. These projections are based on assumptions that management
believes are reasonable. Some assumptions invariably will not materialize due to
unanticipated events and circumstances beyond management's control. Therefore,
actual results of operations will vary from these projections, and the variances may be
material. You should not place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements,
which reflect management's view only as of the date of this Form C. We cannot
guarantee any projected results.

The amount raised in this offering may include investments from company insiders or
immediate family members

Officers, directors, executives, consultants, advisors, and existing owners with a
controlling stake in the Company (or their immediate family members) may make
investments in this offering. Any such investments will be included in the raised
amount reflected on the campaign page.

Minority Holder; Securities with Voting Rights

If you invest in the Company, you will be part of the minority shareholders of the
Company. The Series A-3 Preferred Stock being offered by the Company has voting
rights, but investors in this offering will be required to appoint the CEQ of the
Company as their proxy to vote their shares. Therefore, if vou invest in the Company,
you will have no ability to influence management's decisions on how to run the
business. You will need to trust in management discretion in making good business
decisions that will grow your investment. Furthermore, in the event of a liquidation of
the Company, yvou will be paid out only if there is any cash remaining after all of the
creditors of the Company have been paid.

You are trusting that management will make the best decision for the company
You are trusting in management discretion. You are buying securities as a minority
holder, and therefore must trust the management of the Company to make good
business decisions that grow your investment.

Insufficient Funds

The Company may not sell enough stock in this offering to meet its operating needs
and fulfill its plans, in which case it will need to raise funds in a different manner or
else cease operating, in which case you will lose your investment. Even if we sell all of
the stock we are offering now, the Company will need to raise more funds in the
future, and if it can’t get them, it may fail. Even if we do make a successful offering in



the future, the terms of that offering might result in your investment in the Company
being worth less, because later investors may get better terms.

This offering involves “rolling closings,” which may mean that earlier investors may
not have the benefit of information that later investors have.

Once we meet our target amount for this offering, we may request that StartEngine
instruct the escrow agent to disburse offering funds to us. At that point, investors
whose subscription agreements have been accepted will become our investors. All
early-stage companies are subject to a number of risks and uncertainties, and it is not
uncommon for material changes to be made to the offering terms, or to companies’
businesses, plans, or prospects, sometimes on short notice. When any such changes
happen during the course of an offering, we must file an amendment to our Form C
with the SEC, and investors whose subscriptions have not yet been accepted will have
the right to withdraw their subscriptions and get their money back. However, investors
whose subscriptions have already been accepted will already be our investors and will
have no such right.

Our new product could fail to achieve the sales projections we expected

Our growth projections are based on the assumptions that we will receive FDA
clearance of 3TBA and that human clinical trials of 3TBA will be successful, and also
that with an increased advertising and marketing budget our product will be able to
gain traction in the marketplace. It is possible that our new product will fail to gain
market acceptance for any number of reasons. If 3TBA fails to achieve significant sales
and acceptance in the marketplace, this could materially and adversely impact the
value of your investment.

We have existing patents that we might not be able to protect properly

The Company's most valuable asset is its intellectual property. The Company has 13
issued U.S. patents and 7 pending U.S. patent applications, 9 issued foreign patents
and 5 pending foreign patent applications, plus trademarks, copyrights, Internet
domain names, and trade secrets. We believe the most valuable component of the
Company is our intellectual property portfolio. Due to the value, competitors may
misappropriate or violate the rights owned by the Company. The Company intends to
continue to protect its intellectual property portfolio from any such violations. In
doing so, we may be required to expend significant time and expense to prevent
infringement or enforce our rights. Further, intellectual property litigation is, by its
nature, unpredictable, and any potential judgment against us could require the
payment of substantial damages or prohibit us from offering certain products for sale.
If the protection of our proprietary rights is inadequate to prevent unauthorized use or
appropriation by other parties, the value of our brand and other intangible assets may
be diminished, allowing competitors to mimic our technology and methods of
operations more effectively.

Our trademarks, copyrights and other intellectual property could be unenforceable or
ineffective

Intellectual property is a complex field of law in which few things are certain.
Competitors may be able to design around our intellectual property, find prior art to



invalidate it, or render the patents unenforceable through some other mechanism. If
competitors are able to bypass our trademark and copyright protection without
obtaining a sublicense, it is likely that the Company’s value will be materially and
adversely affected. Moreover, if our trademarks and copyrights are deemed
unenforceable, the Company will almost certainly lose any potential revenue it might
be able to raise by entering into sublicenses.

The cost of enforcing our trademarks and copyrights could prevent us from enforcing
them

Patent, trademark, and copyright litigation has become extremely expensive. Even if
we believe that a competitor is infringing on one or more of our trademarks or
copyrights, we might choose not to file suit because we lack the cash to successfully
prosecute a multi-vyear litigation with an uncertain outcome; or because we believe
that the cost of enforcing our intellectual property rights outweighs the value of
winning the suit in light of the risks and consequences of losing it; or for some other
reason. Choosing not to enforce our intellectual property rights could have adverse
consequences for the Company, including undermining the credibility of our
intellectual property, reducing our ability to enter into sublicenses, and weakening
our attempts to prevent competitors from entering the market. As a result, if we are
unable to enforce our intellectual property rights because of the cost of enforcement,
your investment in the Company could be significantly and adversely affected.

The loss of one or more of our key personnel, or our failure to attract and retain other
highly qualified personnel in the future, could harm our business

To be successful, the Company requires capable people to run its day-to-day
operations. As the Company grows, it will need to attract and hire additional
employees in sales, marketing, design, development, operations, finance, human
resources, and other areas. Depending on the economic environment and the
Company’s performance, we may not be able to locate or attract qualified individuals
for these positions when we need them. We may also make hiring mistakes, which can
be costly in terms of resources spent in recruiting, hiring, and investing in the
incorrect individual and in the time delay in locating the right employee fit. If we are
unable to attract, hire, and retain the right talent or make too many hiring mistakes,
our business likely will suffer from not having the right employees in the right
positions at the right time.

Our ability to sell our product or service is dependent on outside government
regulation which can be subject to change at any time

Qur ability to sell product is dependent on obtaining FDA clearance, as well as
compliance with other relevant government laws and regulations. These laws and
regulations may be subject to change. If they do change, sales of our product may no
longer be in the Company's best interests. At that point, the Company may no longer
want to sell product and therefore your investment in the Company may be affected.

We rely on third parties to provide services essential to the success of our business
We rely and expect to rely on third parties to provide a variety of essential business
functions for us, including manufacturing, shipping, accounting, legal work,



advertising, and distribution. Some of these third parties may fail to perform their
services or may perform them in an unacceptable manner. We may encounter delays,
defects, errors, or other problems with their work that will materially affect our
operations, and we may have little or no recourse to recover damages for these losses.
A disruption in these key or other suppliers’ operations could materially and adversely
affect our business. As a result, yvour investment could be adversely affected by our
reliance on third parties and their performance.

We may pledge our assets as collateral to lenders

The Company may utilize various forms of debt financing and credit facilities in the
future that contain covenants limiting our ability to engage in specified types of
transactions. For example, these covenants may limit our ability to incur additional
debt, pay dividends on our stock, make certain investments, or sell or dispose of our
assets. A breach in any of these covenants could result in a default under the credit
facility. On default, the lender could elect to declare all amounts outstanding
immediately due and payable. We may pledge a significant portion of our assets,
including our intellectual property, as collateral to support a credit facility in the
future. If the lender accelerates the payment of the credit facility upon default, we may
not have sufficient assets to repay them and could then lose our intellectual property.

Payment of dividends to stockholders is uncertain

The Company's payment of dividends to stockholders may be subordinate to payment
on any future debt financing extended to the Company. In addition, the growth and
expansion of the Company’s business will take priority over the payment of dividends.

The Company is not providing any advice to prospective investors

The Company is not providing investors with any legal, accounting, tax, or business
advice regarding investment in the shares of Series A-3 Preferred Stock. You are solely
responsible for deciding whether an investment in the shares meets your investment
goals and is an appropriate investment for you. We encourage you to consult your own
lawyer, accountant, and/or financial or tax adviser before making an investment
decision.

Financial statements are included only for informational purposes

The references to financial statements in this Form C are for informational purposes
only. The Company's auditors undertake no responsibility to any stockholder or
prospective stockholder regarding their services to the Company, including, without
limitation, any responsibility to conduct an audit to identify fraud or mismanagement
concerning the Company. OUR AUDITOR'S SERVICES FOR THE FISCAL YEARS
ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2022 AND 2021 DO NOT CONSTITUTE DUE DILIGENCE
REGARDING A STOCKHOLDER'S OR PROSPECTIVE STOCKHOLDER'S INVESTMENT
IN THE COMPANY. STOCKHOLDERS AND PROSPECTIVE STOCKHOLDERS MUST
CONDUCT THEIR OWN INDEPENDENT DUE DILIGENCE REGARDING AN
INVESTMENT IN THE COMPANY.

There is no assurance of FDA clearance
The FDA regulatory process is time-consuming, expensive, and subject to potential



delays. Delays in the regulatory process will necessarily delay the launch of our
product. Moreover, the FDA disapproved the Company's 2021 application for clearance
of 3TBA as a novel medical device. Although the Company plans to submit a new
application to the FDA requesting clearance of 3TBA as a substantially equivalent
medical device, based on the advice of an experienced regulatory consultant, there can
be no assurance that the FDA will grant clearance. If FDA clearance is not received,

the Company will not be able to market or sell its product and the Company will fail.

There is no assurance of market acceptance

There can be no assurance that dentists and oral surgeons will accept 3TBA. If we fail
to achieve broad market acceptance of our product, the Company will have limited
revenues and as a result will have operating losses or low profitability. Profitability is
a key factor in the valuation of the Company's stock. Operating losses or low
profitability will adversely affect the Company's ability to raise additional funds and
will lessen the likelihood of the Company's success.

There is no assurance that human clinical trials will be successful

Assuming that the Company receives FDA clearance of 3TBA, it plans to conduct
human clinical trials of the technology. However, all of the Company's safety and
efficacy data are based on animal trials. There can be no assurance that the Company's
success in performing 3TBA in live animal trials will translate to human clinical trials.
There is no prior record of successful 35TBA trials, and the Company's human clinical
trials will be the first documented attempt. Until they are attempted, the safety and
efficacy of 3TBA in humans will be unknown. Failure to demonstrate 3TBA success in
humans will result in failure of the Company.

We are pre-revenue and have limited operating history

The Company is pre-revenue and has a limited operating history. We have not yet
received FDA clearance to sell our product, and we have not yet conducted human
clinical trials of the 3TBA technology. Further, even assuming the Company receives
FDA clearance of 3TBA, there is no guaranty the product will perform to the safety or
efficacy standards expected in the marketplace. Our scope of operations has been
limited to incorporation of the Company, product research and development, ex vivo
and live animal testing, preparation for regulatory product approval, intellectual
property establishment and maintenance, and capital-raising efforts. Due to our
limited operating history, we have limited insight into trends that may emerge and
affect our business. Early-stage companies such as the Company frequently encounter
unanticipated risks, uncertainties, and difficulties. The Company has incurred net
losses to date, and there is no assurance that we will generate revenue or be profitable
in future years. You should evaluate the offering described in this Form C in view of
the possible delays, additional expenses, and other unforeseen complications that are
often encountered by new business ventures.



Ownership and Capital Structure; Rights of the Securities

Ownership

The following table sets forth information regarding beneficial ownership of the
company’s holders of 20% or more of any class of voting securities as of the date of
this Offering Statement filing.

Number of Type of Security

Stockholder Name Securities od od Percentage
Leigh E. Cnl!:}y.f and Judith K. Colby 2,000,000 Voting Common
Revocable Living Trust Stock
Leigh E. Colby and Judith K. Colby 40,053 Series A-2 26.89%

Revocable Living Trust Preferred Stock

Leigh E. Colby and Judith K. Colby 1.300.000 Series A-1
Revocable Living Trust S Preferred Stock

The Company's Securities

The Company has authorized Voting Common Stock, Non-Voting Common Stock,
Series A-1 Preferred Stock, Series A-2 Preferred Stock, and Series A-3 Preferred Stock.
As part of the Regulation Crowdfunding raise, the Company will be offering up to
1,333,334 of Series A-3 Preferred Stock.

Voting Common Stock
The amount of security authorized is 12,955,991 with a total of 4,224,192 outstanding.
Voting Rights

One vote per share on all matters on which the stockholders are entitled to vote, with
one exception. They are not entitled to vote on an amendment to the terms of any
outstanding Preferred Stock on which the Preferred Stockholders have the right to
vote.

Material Rights

Outstanding Shares

The number of outstanding shares of Voting Common Stock stated above is a “fully

diluted” number that both takes into account 2,000,000 shares that have actually been
issued to stockholders and assumes that all shares reserved for issuance pursuant to
the Company’s 2018 Stock Plan and 2019 Warrant Plan have been issued.

Specifically, the total amount outstanding includes 169,824 shares to be issued
pursuant to outstanding stock options plus 1,554,368 shares still available for option
grants under the 2018 Stock Plan.

It also includes 387,192 shares to be issued pursuant to outstanding warrants plus




112,808 shares still available for warrant grants under the 2019 Warrant Plan.

Dividend Rights

The Common Stockholders (both Voting and Non-Voting) are entitled to receive
dividends when, as, and if declared by the Board of Directors, subject to the prior
dividend rights of Preferred Stockholders.

Liguidation Rights

Upon the sale or liquidation of the Company, the Common Stockholders (both Voting
and Non-Voting) are entitled to share ratably in the net assets legally available for
distribution to stockholders after (i) the payment of all debts and other liabilities of
the Company; and (ii) the liquidation preference pavable to the Preferred
Stockholders.

No Other Rights

The holders of Voting Common Stock have no preemptive, conversion, redemption, or
other rights.

Agreements Affecting Stockholder Rights

The rights of the Common Stockholders (both Voting and Non-Voting) are also
affected by certain agreements that the Company has put in place with some or all of
its stockholders. See "Series A-3 Preferred Stock — Material Rights — Agreements
Affecting Stockholder Rights.”

Non-Voting Common Stock

The amount of security authorized is 1,000 with a total of 0 outstanding.
Voting Rights

There are no voting rights associated with Non-Voting Common Stock.
Material Rights

The terms of the Non-Voting Common Stock and the Voting Common Stock are
identical, except with respect to voting rights.

Series A-1 Preferred Stock
The amount of security authorized is 3,260,558 with a total of 3,195,808 outstanding.
Voting Rights

One vote for each share of Voting Common Stock into which the Series A-1 Preferred
Stock could then be converted. There are also special voting rights described below
under “Material Rights — Protective Provisions.”



Material Rights

Protective Provisions

So long as the holders of Preferred Stock (Series A-1, Series A-2, and Series A-3
combined) own at least 50% of all outstanding shares of the Company’s voting capital
stock (calculated on an as-converted basis for Voting Common Stock), the Company
may not take any of the following actions without the approval of the holders of a
majority of the then-outstanding shares of Preferred Stock:

1. Sell or liquidate the Company.
2. Amend the Certificate of Incorporation or Bylaws.

3. Increase or decrease (other than by conversion or redemption) the total number of
authorized shares of Common Stock or Preferred Stock or the designated shares of any
series of Common Stock or Preferred Stock.

4. Authorize, create, or issue any equity security having a preference over or being on
parity with the Preferred Stock with respect to dividends, liquidation, or conversion.

5. Reclassify or amend any existing security that has equal rights with the Preferred
Stock with respect to dividends, liquidation, or conversion if the action would make
that security senior to the Preferred Stock.

6. Redeem, purchase, or otherwise acquire any Common Stock or Preferred Stock,
except for certain repurchases from employees, directors, or independent contractors.

7. Change the number of directors on the Board of Directors or the method of electing
directors; provided that the Board may increase the number of directors to 7.

8. Pay or declare any dividend.

9. Create or hold stock in any subsidiary that is not wholly owned by the Company or
permit any subsidiary to sell to a third party.

10. Authorize, create, or issue any debt security, unless approved by the Board of
Directors.

11. Issue any shares of Preferred Stock.

If the Preferred Stockholders' vote on any of these matters is tied, then the action may
be approved by the Board of Directors.

Dividend Rights

The Preferred Stockholders (i.e., the holders of Series A-1, A-2, and A-3 Preferred
Stock) are entitled to receive dividends, in preference to any dividends on Common
Stock, when, as, and if declared by the Board of Directors. Dividends are not
cumulative. The dividend rate for Series A-1 Preferred Stock is $0.08 per share per
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After the payment of dividends to the Preferred Stockholders, any additional
dividends will be distributed among both the Common Stockholders (i.e., the holders
of both Voting and Non-Voting Common Stock) and the Preferred Stockholders. The
Preferred Stockholders will share dividends in proportion to the number of shares of
Voting Common Stock they would own if all shares of Preferred Stock were converted
to Voting Common Stock at the then-effective conversion rate.

Liguidation Rights

Upon the sale or liquidation of the Company (i.e., the holders of Series A-1, A-2, and
A-3 Preferred Stock) will be entitled to receive out of the proceeds or assets available
for distribution to stockholders, prior and in preference to any distribution to
Common Stockholders, a set amount per share ("Liquidation Preference") plus any
declared but unpaid dividends. The Liquidation Preference for holders of Series A-1
Preferred Stock is $1.00 per share. However, the Preferred Stockholders will be
deemed to have converted their Preferred Stock into Voting Common Stock if the
conversion would result in a greater distribution. Any remaining proceeds will be
distributed to the Common Stockholders.

Conversion Rights

Optional Conversion

Preferred Stockholders may convert their shares of Preferred Stock into Voting
Common Stock at any time at the then-applicable conversion rate. The conversion
rate on the date of this Form C is one share of Voting Common Stock for each share of
Preferred Stock.

Automatic Conversion

All shares of Preferred Stock will automatically be converted into Voting Common
Stock at the conversion rate then in effect immediately upon the earlier of (i) the
closing of an IPO by the Company that results in at least $30 million of proceeds, net
of underwriting discounts and commissions, to the Company; or (i1) a date, or the
occurrence of an event, determined by the holders of a majority of the then-
outstanding shares of Preferred Stock (voting together as a single class and not as
separate series, and on an as-converted basis).

Agreements Affecting Stockholder Rights

Preferred Stockholders' rights are also affected by certain agreements that the
Company has put in place with some or all of its stockholders. See "Series A-3
Preferred Stock — Material Rights — Agreements Affecting Stockholder Rights.”

Series A-2 Preferred Stock

The amount of security authorized is 3,869,324 with a total of 3,869,324 outstanding.



Voting Rights

One vote for each share of Voting Common Stock into which the Series A-2 Preferred
Stock could then be converted, plus the special voting rights described above. See
“Series A-1 Preferred Stock — Material Rights — Protective Provisions.”

Material Rights

The terms of the Series A-2 Preferred Stock and the Series A-1 Preferred Stock are
identical, except as set forth below:

1. The dividend rate for Series A-2 Preferred Stock is $0.14 per share per annum.

2. The Liquidation Preference for Series A-2 Preferred Stock is $1.75 per share.
Series A-3 Preferred Stock

The amount of security authorized is 1,666,667 with a total of 0 outstanding.
Voting Rights

One vote for each share of Voting Common Stock into which the Series A-3 Preferred
Stock could then be converted, plus the special voting rights described above. See
“Series A-1 Preferred Stock — Material Rights — Protective Provisions.” In addition,
investors in this offering will be required to become parties to the Company's Fourth
Amended and Restated Voting Agreement dated July 26, 2022, which dictates their
vote regarding the election of the Board of Directors, certain increases in the
Company's Common Stock, and the sale of the Company. See "Material Rights -
Agreements Affecting Stockholder Rights - Voting Agreement” below. Further, in the
Subscription and Joinder Agreement they will be required to sign, investors in this
offering will be required to appoint the CEO of the Company as their proxy to vote
their shares with respect to all matters on which the holders of Series A-3 Preferred
Stock are entitled to vote, including, without limitation, the matters specified in the
Voting Agreement.

Material Rights

The terms of the Series A-3 Preferred Stock and the Series A-1 Preferred Stock are
identical, except as set forth below:

1. The dividend rate for Series A-3 Preferred Stock is $0.24 per share per annum.
2. The Liquidation Preference for Series A-3 Preferred Stock is $3.00 per share.

Aereements Affecting Stockholder Rights

The Company has entered into certain agreements with some or all of its stockholders
that affect the rights of all stockholders, including the holders of Series A-3 Preferred
Stock. Those agreements are described below.



Voting Agreement

The Fourth Amended and Restated Voting Agreement by and among the Company and
all of its stockholders (the "Voting Agreement"), a copy of which is attached as Exhibit
F to the Form C, governs stockholder voting on three matters: (1) election of the
Company's Board of Directors; (2) certain increases in Common Stock; and (3) the sale
of the Company. Investors in the Series A-3 Preferred Stock will be required to become
parties to the Voting Agreement by signing and delivering the Company's Subscription
and Joinder Agreement.

Election of Directors. In conjunction with the Company's Sixth Amended and Restated
Certificate of Incorporation (the "Certificate”), the Voting Agreement requires the
Board to be composed of no less than five directors, and it permits the Board to
increase the number of directors to a maximum of seven. The Certificate then
provides that the Company's founder, Dr. Leigh Colby (the "Founder"), is entitled to
nominate and elect two directors to the Board so long as he owns or controls at least
20% of the Company’s outstanding voting capital stock (on an as-converted basis for
the Preferred Stock), and the right to nominate one director so long as he owns or
controls at least 10% of the outstanding voting capital stock. The Founder currently
owns 36.8% of the outstanding voting capital stock and therefore is entitled to
nominate two directors. Similarly, it provides that the Company's other principal
stockholder, Inspiros Ventures [ SPV-A, L.P. ("Inspiros”), has the right to nominate
and elect two directors so long as it owns or controls at least 20% of the Company's
outstanding voting capital stock (on an as-converted basis), and the right to nominate
one director so long as it owns or controls at least 15% of the voting capital stock.
Inspiros currently owns and holds warrants for a total of 16.1% of the outstanding
voting capital stock and therefore is entitled to nominate one director.

The Voting Agreement requires all Voting Common Stockholders to vote in favor of
electing the director(s) nominated by the Founder. The Founder has the right to serve
as one of those directors so long as he owns or controls at least 10% of the outstanding
voting capital stock. It further requires all Preferred Stockholders to vote in favor of
electing the director(s) nominated by Inspiros.

The Certificate provides that all other directors will be nominated by majority Board
approval. The Voting Agreement then requires all voting stockholders (i.e., the
holders of Voting Common Stock and the holders of all Preferred Stock) to vote in
favor of electing any such Board-nominated directors.

Finally, if the Founder ceases to serve as the Company's CEO, the stockholders are
required to vote to increase the size of the Board to seven directors; to elect any new
CEO appointed by the Board as a director; and if the Company does not then have two
Board-nominated directors, to elect one additional director approved by a majority of
the Board.

Common Stock Increases. The Voting Agreement requires all voting stockholders to
vote in favor of authorizing an increase in the number of shares of Voting Common
Stock as needed to permit the conversion of all outstanding Preferred Stock into



Voting Common Stock.

Sale of the Company and Drag-Along Rights. The Voting Agreement requires all
voting stockholders to vote in favor of a sale of the Company if the sale has been
approved by the Board, the holders of a majority of the Voting Common Stock, and the
holders of a majority of the Preferred Stock (on an as-converted basis). Further, if the
sale is structured as a stock sale, the agreement requires all stockholders to sell a
proportionate amount of their shares in the transaction, so long as the Preferred
Stockholders first receive their Liquidation Preference.

Parties to the Agreement. The agreement requires all future Preferred Stockholders,
and any other stockholder acquiring 1% or more of the Company's then-outstanding
voting capital stock, to become a party to the agreement.

Note. This summary of the Voting Agreement and the Certificate is merely an outline
and does not purport to describe those documents fully or to refer to all of their terms.
Prospective investors should read the Voting Agreement and the Certificate
themselves (which are attached as exhibits) and, to the extent they deem necessary,
seek independent legal advice regarding their terms.

First Refusal and Co-Sale Agreement

The Fourth Amended and Restated First Refusal and Co-Sale Agreement (the "Co-Sale
Agreement") applies to the Company's two principal stockholders, the Founder and
Inspiros (the "Principal Stockholders"), and to any employees or consultants who
acquire 1% or more of the Company's outstanding Voting Common Stock through the
exercise of options or warrants. Investors in the Series A-35 Preferred Stock are not
intended to become parties to it.

Right of First Refusal. The Co-Sale Agreement gives both the Company and Inspiros a
right of first refusal if the Founder (or an employee or consultant described above)
wishes to sell or otherwise transfer his shares of the Company to a third party. There
are a few exceptions (such as transfers for estate-planning purposes) where the right
of first refusal does not apply.

Co-Sale Rights. To the extent that the Company and Inspiros do not exercise their
right of first refusal, they will have co-sale rights - i.e., the right to participate in the
sale of shares by the Founder (or by an employee or consultant described above). The
same exceptions that apply to the right of first refusal also apply to the co-sale rights.

Additional Parties. The Co-Sale Agreement is principally intended to benefit Inspiros.
A new stockholder has the right to become a party to it only if the stockholder
acquires at least 1 million shares of Preferred Stock and receives Board approval.

Investors' Rights Agreement

The Fourth Amended and Restated Investors’ Rights Agreement (the "Investor Rights
Agreement”) provides the Principal Stockholders with certain registration and other
rights. Investors in the Series A-3 Preferred Stock are not intended to become parties



to it.

Registration Rights. Registration rights are the right to require the Company to
register a stockholder's shares for public sale with the SEC, resulting in the shares
becoming freely tradeable. The Investor Rights Agreement grants Principal
Stockholders owning a majority of the Company's outstanding Voting Common Stock
issued or issuable on conversion of the Preferred Stock, or on conversion or exercise of
any other Company securities acquired by the Principal Stockholders (collectively,
"Registrable Securities”), the right to request that the Company register their shares of
Common Stock, subject to certain conditions. The agreement also provides that if the
Company decides to undertake a public offering, it is required to include the Principal
Stockholders' shares in the offering if requested, subject to certain conditions. The
Principal Stockholders may assign these registration rights to affiliated entities, family
members, or certain purchasers of their shares. Finally, with certain exceptions, the
agreement prohibits the company from granting registration rights to other
stockholders without the prior written consent of Principal Stockholders owning a
majority of the then-outstanding Registrable Securities.

Right of First Offer. The agreement grants Principal Stockholders that own at least 1
million shares of Registrable Securities a right of first offer if the Company proposes
to sell shares of its capital stock or other securities convertible into capital stock. The
Principal Stockholders have waived any first offer rights with respect to this offering
of Series A-3 Preferred Stock.

Additional Parties. The Investor Rights Agreement is principally intended to benefit
only the Principal Stockholders. A new stockholder has the right to become a party to
it only if the stockholder acquires at least 1 million shares of Preferred Stock and
receives Board approval.

Management Richts Letter

Finally, the Company has a Management Rights Letter granting additional rights to
Inspiros in certain circumstances.

First, the letter states that if at any point Inspiros ceases to have a representative on
the Board, then it will still have the right to meet with and advise Company
management on significant business issues and to receive copies of Board meeting
minutes and any other materials provided to the Board (subject to confidentiality
obligations).

Second, it states that if the Company issues Preferred Stock in the future at a lower
price per share than Inspiros paid in 2018, and any shares of Preferred Stock have
price-based anti-dilution protection, then Inspiros will have the same anti-dilution
rights.

What it means to be a minority holder

Although the shares of Series A-3 Preferred Stock being offered by the Company have



voting rights, the Subscription and Joinder Agreement that you will sign to invest in
the Company provides that you will appoint the Company's CEO as your proxy to vote
any shares you purchase. With respect to the election of directors, increases in the
Company's Common Stock, and the sale of the Company, the CEO will vote all shares
sold in this offering as required under the Voting Agreement. See "Series A-3
Preferred Stock - Material Rights - Agreements Affecting Stockholder Rights - Voting
Agreement.” Therefore, you will have no right to vote on or influence the Company's
corporate actions.

Dilution

Investors should understand the potential for dilution.

If the Company decides to issue more shares after this offering closes, investors in this
offering could see their stake in the Company decrease. In other words, when the
Company issues more shares, the percentage of the Company that vou own will go
down, even though the value of the Company may go up, causing you to own a smaller
piece of a larger company. The issuance of additional shares could result from a stock
offering (such as an initial public offering, another crowdfunding round, a venture
capital round, or an angel investment), employees exercising stock options, or
conversion of convertible notes, warrants, or other instruments into stock.

In addition, if the Company issues additional shares, investors in this offering could
experience value dilution, with each share being worth less than before. Finally,
investors could also experience earnings dilution, with a reduction in the amount
earned per share (though this typically occurs only if the Company offers dividends,

and most early-stage companies are unlikely to offer dividends, preferring to invest
any earnings into the company).

Transferability of securities
For a vear, the securities can only be resold:
® InanIPO;

¢ To the company;

® To an accredited investor; and

e To a member of the family of the purchaser or the equivalent, to a trust
controlled by the purchaser, to a trust created for the benefit of a member of the
family of the purchaser or the equivalent, or in connection with the death or
divorce of the purchaser or other similar circumstance.

Recent Offerings of Securities

We have made the following issuances of securities within the last three years:



e Name: Series A-2 Preferred Stock
Type of security sold: Equity
Final amount sold: $2,502,498.25
Number of Securities Sold: 1,429,999
Use of proceeds: Further development and refinement of the 3TBA technology; a
final animal study of the technology; and preparation of an initial request for
FDA clearance of 3TBA as a de novo medical device.
Date: August 03, 2020
Offering exemption relied upon: Rule 504

e Name: Series A-2 Preferred Stock
Type of security sold: Equity
Final amount sold: $0.00
Number of Securities Sold: 2,439,325
Use of proceeds: No money was raised. This offering consisted of the conversion
of Convertible Notes into Series A-2 Preferred Stock.
Date: December 31, 2020
Offering exemption relied upon: Rule 504

¢ Type of security sold: Convertible Note
Final amount sold: $1,650,000.00
Use of proceeds: Research & Development
Date: May 05, 2020
Offering exemption relied upon: Rule 504. However, the Company may not have
complied with all applicable requirements of federal and state securities laws in
offering and selling the Convertible Notes. All Convertible Notes have been
converted into Series A-2 Preferred Stock, as described above.

Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Financial Condition

You should read the following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and
results of our operations together with our financial statements and related notes
appearing at the end of this Offering Memorandum. This discussion contains forward-
looking statements reflecting our current expectations that involve risks and
uncertainties. Actual results and the timing of events may differ materially from those
contained in these forward-looking statements due to a number of factors, including
those discussed in the section entitled “Risk Factors” and elsewhere in this Offering
Memorandum.

Results of Operations

Circumstances which led to the performance of financial statements:



Year ended September 30, 2021 compared to year ended September 30, 2022

Revenue & Cost of sales

TriAgenics is pre-revenue, so there wasn't any reported Revenue or Cost of Sales in
fiscal year 2021 or in fiscal year 2022.

Gross margins

TriAgenics is pre-revenue, so there wasn't a Gross Margin in fiscal year 2021 or in
fiscal yvear 2022,

Expenses

Expenses for fiscal year 2021 were $1,062,543 compared to $1,435,220 in fiscal year
2022.

The increase in expenses was relative to the creation of prototype equipment and
increased efforts to prepare for and apply for FDA clearance for the equipment.

Historical results and cash flows:

The Company is currently in the pre-production stage and pre-revenue. We are of the
opinion the historical cash flows will not be indicative of the revenue and cash flows
expected for the future because we have not yet received FDA clearance for our
equipment. Past cash was primarily generated through equity investments. Our goal is
to begin generating sales in late 2024 (FY2025) and to generate positive returns in
FY2026.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

What capital resources are currently available to the Company? (Cash on hand,
existing lines of credit, shareholder loans, etc...)

As of April 30, 2023, the Company had capital resources available in the amount of
$588,288 cash on hand.

How do the funds of this campaign factor into your financial resources? (Are these
funds critical to your company operations? Or do you have other funds or capital
resources available?)

We believe the funds from this campaign are critical to our Company operations.
These funds are required to support our application for FDA clearance and bringing
our product to market.

Are the funds from this campaign necessary to the viability of the company? (Of the
total funds that your company has, how much of that will be made up of funds raised
from the crowdfunding campaign?)



We believe the funds from this campaign are necessary to the viability of the
Company. Of the total funds that our Company has, 86% will be made up of funds
raised from the crowdfunding campaign, if it raises its maximum funding goal.

How long will you be able to operate the company if you raise your minimum? What
expenses is this estimate based on?

If the Company raises the minimum offering amount (i.e., the minimum target
amount of $15,000), we anticipate the Company will be able to operate for 5-7
months. This is based on a current monthly burn rate of $130,000 for expenses related
to compensation & benefits ($40,000), consulting & outside services ($32,000),
business travel ($10,000) and product development expenses ($48,000), with
modifications to reduce some of these expenses.

How long will you be able to operate the company if you raise your maximum funding
goal?

If the Company raises the maximum offering amount, we anticipate the Company will
be able to operate for 12 months. This is based on a current monthly burn rate of

$130,000 for expenses (described above) and additional expenses associated with
applying for FDA clearance and a manufacturing scale-up of the 3TBA generators and
treatment kits.

Are there any additional future sources of capital available to your company?
(Required capital contributions, lines of credit, contemplated future capital raises,
etc...)

The Company plans to raise additional funds in the future, and will explore all
reasonable sources of capital.

Indebtedness

The Company does not have any material terms of indebtedness.

Related Party Transactions
The Company has not conducted any related party transactions
Valuation

Pre-Money Valuation: $33,867,972.00

Valuation Details:



TriAgenics's valuation is based on its analysis of several factors, including but not
limited to, the following.

Market Potential and Current Stage of Development

Every year, more than 5 million patients in the U.S. spend over $3 billion to have
wisdom teeth extracted or have painful wisdom tooth problems, such as gum
infections and cysts, treated. Most wisdom teeth - more than 80% - are extracted by
oral surgery specialists. Parents and dentists alike have told the Company that they
are seeking a safer, complication-free alternative to the teenage rite of passage of
having wisdom teeth removed. 3TBA is designed to eliminate the pain and risks
associated with forming wisdom teeth.

TriAgenics is preparing to submit a new application to the FDA. The FDA usually
makes its determination within 90 davs of submission, although the Company has
been advised that the timeline will likely be closer to 120 days. Assuming that
TriAgenics receives clearance, it then plans to conduct human clinical trials in order
to have specific safety data to present before going to market.

Previous Sales of Securities

Our most recent offering of Series A-2 Preferred Stock opened in August 2020 and
became oversubscribed, requiring the authorization of additional shares, and closed in
2021. That funding round provided a post-money valuation of $18,587,936.50.

Developments Since Previous Sale of Securities

Key patents have been issued since 2021. In particular, patents have been issued
protecting TriAgenics' proprietary microwave ablation probe that allows us to shape
the zone of ablation.

Since 2021, we have also demonstrated the efficacy of its Zero3 TBA technology in
further live animal trials, with 100% success in preventing tooth formation. We have
completed pre-production prototype development and are now scaling manufacturing
of our Zero3 TBA product in preparation for applying to the FDA for clearance.

Management's Experience & Prior Successes

Leigh Colby, Director, Corporate Secretary, President, & CEQO — From 1995 through
2015, Dr. Colby was the founder, CEQO, and sole shareholder of Oregon Dental Care, a
successful group dental practice in Oregon that was ultimately acquired by InterDent.
Prior to starting Oregon Dental Care, Dr. Colby served in lead roles with three high-
tech startups that remain in successful operation today: Laserdyne Corporation, maker
of 2D and 3D laser processing systems; Cvberoptics Corporation, developer and
manufacturer of high-precision 3D optical sensing technology; and Surmodics, Inc.,
malker of technologies for intravascular medical devices and provider of chemical
components for in vitro diagnostic immunoassay tests and microarrays.

Dave Watson. Director & Chief of Operations — Before joining TriAgenics, Mr. Watson




worked for 15 years with IBM in Engineering, Manufacturing, and Product
Development, where he held key technical and senior management positions. Before
IEM, he served as Director of Technology at Planar Systems, Inc., Director of
Engineering at Fujitsu Ltd., Director of Manufacturing at Biotronik, Inc., and VP of
Engineering at Unilife Medical Solutions, Inc. Mr. Watson has patents in the fields of
automated equipment and technology products.

John Chopack, Jr., Director — Mr. Chopack is a founding partner of Inspiros and has 14
years of experience in venture capital investing in medtech companies. As a General
Partner at HealthpointCapital, an $800 million AUM medtech-focused private equity
firm, Mr. Chopack played an integral role in the firm’s most profitable investments —
Nexa Orthopedics, BioHorizons, and Blue Belt Technologies. Mr. Chopack has been
recognized as a “40 under 40 Medtech Innovator” by Medical Device and Diagnostic
Industry Magazine.

George Shahin, Director — Dr. Shahin is a founding partner of Inspiros. As its Chief
Medical Officer, Dr. Shahin leads the review process and analysis of medical devices
and healthcare technologies. Dr. Shahin brings to Inspiros his experience as a
practicing physician at the Family Health Centers at NYU Langone, focused on
evidence-based medicine, patient outcomes and value-based care.

David Thrower, Director — Mr. Thrower has held executive leadership roles in a variety
of companies in medical device markets, where he has over 25 years of experience. His
roles have included VP of Global Marketing at Align Technology, the makers of
Invisalign (invisible orthodontic aligners); CEO of InSound Medical, a disruptive play
in the hearing device space (purchased by Sonova in 2011); and CEO of Asante
Solutions, where David successfully shepherded an insulin pump through FDA
approval and early commercial launch.

letf Jacobs, Director — Mr. Jacobs is the former Chief Executive Officer and a co-
founder of Stradis Healthcare, with more than 20 vears of experience in the medical
device and contract manufacturing industry. He led the company through multiple
acquisitions after successfully exiting the business in 2021, selling to Henry Schein, a
Fortune 500 Healthcare distributor. Prior to founding Stradis Healthcare, Jeff served in
a sales and marketing role for the multi-billion-dollar technology services company
Vanstar Corp., launching their Nashville office focusing on the healthcare sector.

Value of the Company's Assets

TriAgenics has 13 issued U.S. patents and 5 pending U.S. patent applications directed
at therapeutic bud ablation. It has also filed 2 U.S. nonprovisional patent applications
that claim benefit/priority to 2 earlier U.S. provisional patent applications directed at
an ablation probe system. In addition, TriAgenics has 9 issued foreign patents (5 in
Australia, 3 in Canada, and 1 in Mexico), as well as 5 pending foreign patent
applications in Europe, Australia, Canada, and Mexico. Finally, TriAgenics has other IP
that it has developed, including U.S. trademarks for Zero3® and TriAgenics®.

Conclusion



Based on the above, we believe that the pre-money valuation of $33,867,972 is
reasonable.

Disclaimers

The Company set its valuation internally, without a formal-third party independent
evaluation.

The pre-money valuation has been calculated on a fully diluted basis. In making this
calculation, we have assumed: (i) all Preferred Stock is converted to Voting Common
Stock; (i) all outstanding options, warrants, and other securities with a right to
acquire shares are exercised; and (iii) any shares reserved for issuance under a stock or
warrant plan are issued.

Use of Proceeds

If we raise the Target Offering Amount of $15,000.00 we plan to use these proceeds as
follows:

e StartEngine Platform Fees
5.5%

e StartEngine Premium Fee
94.5%

StartEngine Premium Fee

If we raise the over allotment amount of $4,000,002.00, we plan to use these proceeds
as follows:

e StartEngine Platform Fees
5.5%

o Apply for FDA clearance & conduct human clinical trials of 3TBA
20.0%
Apply for FDA clearance & conduct human clinical trials of 3STBA

o Company Employment
5.0%
Hire a new CEO to take the Company into the next stage of its development

e Operations
50.0%
Scale-up for manufacturing of the 3TBA generator and handpieces

e Consulting services on regulatory matters and engineering issues
19.5%
Consulting services on regulatory matters and engineering issues

The Company may change the intended use of proceeds if our officers believe it is in



the best interests of the company.

Regulatory Information

Disqualification

No disqualifying event has been recorded in respect to the company or its officers or
directors.

Compliance Failure

The company has not previously failed to comply with the requirements of Regulation
Crowdfunding.

Ongoing Reporting

The Company will file a report electronically with the SEC annually and post the
report on its website no later than January 28 (120 days after Fiscal Year End). Once
posted, the annual report may be found on the Company’s website at
https://triagenics.com/ (https://triagenics.com/).

The Company must continue to comply with the ongoing reporting requirements
until:

(1) it is required to file reports under Section 13(a) or Section 15(d) of the Exchange
Act;

(2) it has filed at least one (1) annual report pursuant to Regulation Crowdfunding and
has fewer than three hundred (300) holders of record and has total assets that do not
exceed $10,000,000;

(3) it has filed at least three (3) annual reports pursuant to Regulation Crowdfunding;

(4) it or another party repurchases all of the securities issued in reliance on Section
4(a)(6) of the Securities Act, including any payment in full of debt securities or any
complete redemption of redeemable securities; or

(5) it liquidates or dissolves its business in accordance with state law.

Updates

Updates on the status of this Offering may be found at:
www.startengine.com/triagenics

Investing Process

See Exhibit E to the Offering Statement of which this Offering Memorandum forms a
part.
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MOSSADAMS

Report of Independent Auditors

The Board of Directors
TriAgenics, Inc.

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of TriAgenics, Inc., which comprise the balance sheets as
of September 30, 2022 and 2021, and the related statements of operations, changes in stockholders’
equity (deficit), and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial
statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Company as of September 30, 2022 and 2021, and the results of its
operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America (GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
required to be independent of the Company and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in
accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Substantial Doubt about the Company’s Ability to Continue as a Going Concern

The Company’s financial statements have been prepared assuming the Company will continue as a
going concern. As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, the Company is in the
development stage of existence and requires additional financial support to fund continued trials of
the Company's core product which raises substantial doubt about its ability to continue as a going
concern. Management's evaluation about the events and conditions and management's plan
regarding those matters are also discussed in Mote 1 of the financial statements. The financial
statements do not include any adjustments that might result from the outcome of this uncertainty. Our
opinion is not modified with respect to that matter.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.



In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the financial statements are
available to be issued.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the
aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial
statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we:
» Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

« |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements.

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is
expressed.

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

« Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about the Company's ahility to continue as a going concern for a
reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal
control-related matters that we identified during the audit.

M%%Mﬂﬁ

Portland, Oregon
January 6, 2023



TriAgenics, Inc.
Balance Sheets

ASSETS
september 30,
2022 2021
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents B 1,458,412 3 2,793,870
Prepaid expenses and other assets 38,002 43,981
Total current assets 1,496,504 2,837,851
Property and equipment, net 73,657 142,289
Total assets i 1,570,161 5 2,980,140
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 5 a17y b 3,486
Accrued liabilities 48,996 43,878
Total current liabilities 49,913 47,364
Capital lease 2,524 4 476
Total liabilities 52,437 51,840

STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Series A-1 Convertible Preferred Stock, £.001 par

value. 3,470,000 authorized shares; 3,195,808 shares

issued and outstanding at September 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively 1.846 1,846
Series A-2 Convertible Preferred Stock, $.001 par

value. 3,869,325 authorized shares; 3,869,324 issued and

outstanding at September 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively 3,869 3,869
Common Stock, $.001 par value, 11,289,325 authorized

shares; 2,000,000 shares issued and outstanding at

September 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively 200 200
Additional paid-in capital 7,772,439 7,749,795
Accumulated deficit (6,260,630) (4,827,410)

Total stockholders' eguity 1517,724 2,928,300
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity 5 1570,161 3 2,980,140

See accompanying notes. 3




TriAgenics, Inc.
Statements of Operations

COSTS AND EXPENSES
General and administrative
Development expense
Depreciation expense

Total costs and expenses

OTHER (INCOME) | EXPENSE
Other income
State and property taxes
Interest income
Interest expense

Total other (income) / expense

Net loss

Years Ended September 30,

2022 2021

$ 536,568 $ 440,786

859,420 563,628
67,785 88,408
1,463,774 1,092,822
(34,159) (82,654)
3,442 3,376
(892) -
1,055 48,999
(30,554) (30,279)

$ 1433220 $ 1062543

See accompanying notes.




TriAgenics, Inc.
Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity (Deficit)

BALAMCE, at September 30, 2020

Issuance of Series A-1 preferred shares
upon exercise of stock options

Comvarsion of commaon shares into
Series A-1 preferred shares

Issuance of Series A-2 preferred shares
Stock compensation expense

Met loss

BALAMCE, at September 30, 2021
Slock compensation expensea

Met loss

BALAMCE, at September 30, 2022

See accompanying notes.

Series A-1 Preferred Stock, Series A-2 Preferred Stock, Common Stock, Additional Total
$.001 par valua $.001 par value %.001 par value Paid-in Accumulated Stockholders'
Shares Amount Shares Amount Shares Amount Capital Deficit Equity (Deficit)
3,100,000 1,750 % 2 000,000 % 200 % 1,941,132 § (3,764.867) % (1,821,785)
95,808 96 95,712 95,808
- - 2,439,325 2,439 - - 3,193,076 - 3,195,515
- - 1,426 999 1,430 - - 2 464 577 2 466,007
- - - 55,298 55,208
(1,062,543) (1,062,543)
3,195,808 1.846 3,860,324 3,869 2,000,000 200 7,749,795 (4,827,410 2,928,300
i ] g - - 22,644 - 22 644
- - - - (1,433.220) (1,433,220)
3,195,808 1.846 3869324 % 3,669 2000000 3 200 B 7072439 % (6,260,630) & 1,517,724




TriAgenics, Inc.
Statements of Cash Flows

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Met loss
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash provided
by operating activities
Stock compensation expense
Forgiveness of long-term debt, PPP
Depreciation
Loss (gain) on sale of equipment
Accrued interest on convertible note
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Prepaid expenses
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities

Met cash (used) from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sale of equipment
Purchases of property and equipment

Met cash (used) from investing activities
CASH FLOWS FROM FINAMNCING ACTIVITIES
Issuance of Series A-1 preferred shares

Issuance of Series A-2 preferred shares
Payments on capital lease

MNet cash (used) from financing activities
Met increase in cash and cash equivalents
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of year

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of year

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW
INFORMATION
Interest paid

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF NONCASH INVESTING

AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Conversion of convertible notes to Senes A-2 preferred shares

Years Ended September 30,

2022 2021
(1,433,220) % (1,062,543
22,644 55,298
- (77,917)
67,785 88,408
2,227 (2,767)
. 46,591
5,889 33,087
(2,569) (8,016)
5118 19,939
(1,332,126) (907,920)
- 28,500
(1,380) (10,556)
(1,380) 17,944
- 95,808
- 2,466,007
(1,952) (1,771)
(1,952) 2,560,044
(1,335,458) 1,670,068
2,793,870 1,123,802
1,458,412 $ 2,793,870
1,055 $ 2,409

3,195,515

See accompanying notes.




TriAgenics, Inc.
Motes to Financial Statements

Mote 1 — Description of Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Description of business

TriAgenics, Inc. (the Company) was organized in September 2017 in the State of Delaware as a
corporation and maintains its headguarters in Redmond, Oregon. The mission of the Company is to
deliver the safest, most effective and simplest means of treating wisdom teeth. Animal testing was
completed in 2021. Since then, the Company has been working to complete product development and
obtain regulatory clearance of its equipment as a medical device. The Company continues to have an
ultimate goal of bringing an end product to market that will block wisdom tooth formation in children.

Going concern, liquidity and managements plan to fund future operations

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared assuming the Company will continue as a
going concemn, which contemplates the realization of assets and liabilities in the normal course of
business. Accordingly, they do not include any adjustments relating to the realization of the carrying value
of assets or the amounts and classification of liabilities that might be necessary should the Company be
unable to continue as a going concern.

The Company has incurred significant operating losses since its inception and has an accumulated deficit
of $6,260,630 as of September 30, 2022, The Company has primarily funded its operations through the
Issuance of convertible notes payable, preferred and common stock.

The Company forecasts an increase in spending to fund production of the device and future human
clinical trials prior to bringing their product to market. The Company is in the process of seeking additional
sources of capital to fund these operations. Failure to obtain sufficient equity financing and ultimately
failure to gain approval of the equipment as a medical device could adversely affect the Company’s ability
to achieve its business objectives and continue as a going concern. These conditions raise substantial
doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a going concern for a period of one year from the date
the financial statements are issued.

The accompanying financial statements do not include any adjustments to the carrying value of assets
and liabilities, or to the reported expenses and balance sheet classification used that might result from the
outcome of these uncertainties. Such adjustments could be material if the going concern assumption
were not appropriate.,

COVID-19 uncertainty

On March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization declared the novel coronavirus outbreak ("COVID-
19") a public health emergency. The Company responded to the coronavirus outbreak by enabling almost
all of its employees to work remotely, banning all non-essential travel and placing a temporary hold on
most in person meetings. Given the dynamic nature of these circumstances, itis too early to tell what
effect these changes will have on the business in the short term. The Company will continue to monitor
the situation closely, but given the uncertainty about the situation, the Company is unable to estimate the
impact to the financial statements.




TriAgenics, Inc.
MNotes to Financial Statements

Mote 1 — Description of Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Use of estimates

The financial statements and accompanying notes are prepared in accordance with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles (U.S. GAAP), which require management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, and disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of expenses during the
reporting period.

Concentrations of credit risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentration of credit risk consist
principally of cash and cash equivalents. Risks associated with cash and cash equivalents are mitigated
by banking with credit worthy institutions.

Fair value of financial instruments

U.5. GAAP provides that fair value is an exit price, representing the amount that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants. As such, fair
value is a market-based measurement that is determined based on assumptions that market participants
would use in pricing an asset or liability. As a basis for considering such assumptions, U.S, GAAP
establishes a three-tier value hierarchy, which prioritizes the inputs used in measuring fair value as
follows:

Level 1 — Inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 — Inputs other than the quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the
assets or liabilities, either directly or indirectly; and

Level 3 — Unobservable inputs for the assets or liabilities in which there is little or no market data,
which requires the Company to develop its own assumptions. The Company's financial instruments
include cash and cash equivalents, accounts payable and accrued expenses. The carrying value of
such financial instruments approximates their fair values due to the short-term duration of these
instruments.

Cash and cash equivalents
The Company considers all highly liquid, interest-earning investments with an original maturity of three
months or less at the date of purchase to be cash equivalents.

Prepaid expenses and other assets
The balance outstanding as of September 30, 2022 and 2021 was $38,092 and $43,981, respectively,
and consists of advances on legal fees and prepayment of insurance premiums, and security deposits for

leased space.




TriAgenics, Inc.
Motes to Financial Statements

Mote 1 — Description of Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Property and equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is provided on the
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets ranging from three to five years.
Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter of asset life or respective lease term. When
assets are retired or disposed of, the cost and accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts,
and any resulting gains or losses are included in operations. Maintenance and repairs are charged to
expense in the period incurred.

Impairment of long-lived assets

Long-lived assets are reviewed for possible impairment whenever events or circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount of such assets may not be recoverable. If such review indicates that the carrying
amount of long-lived asselts is not recoverable, the carrying amount is reduced to fair value. In addition to
the recoverahility assessment, the Company routinely reviews the remaining estimated lives of its long-
lived assets. Any reduction in the useful life assumption will result in increased depreciation expense in
the period when such determination is made, as well as in subsequent periods. There was no impairment
recorded as of September 30, 2022 and 2021.

Development expenses

Development costs are charged to expense as incurred and consist of expenses directly related to the
supplies and project expenses for the production and the preparation for the human clinical trials.
Development expense was $859,420 and $563,628 for the years ended September 30, 2022 and 2021,
respectively.

General and administrative expenses

General and administrative expenses consist of payroll and related expenses for executive and
administrative personnel, professional service and consulting expenses, legal costs, and other general
corporate expenses. General and administrative expense was $536,569 and $440,786 for the years
ended September 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

Income taxes

The Company utilizes the asset and liability method of accounting for income taxes. Deferred income
taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes, as well as
operating loss, capital loss, and tax credit carryforwards.,

Valuation allowances are established against deferred tax assets if it is more likely than not that they will
not be realized. A full valuation allowance is recorded against the net deferred tax assets as of
September 30, 2022 and 2021. The change in the valuation allowance was $372,109 for the year ended
September 30, 2022.




TriAgenics, Inc.
MNotes to Financial Statements

Mote 1 — Description of Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

The Company applies the provisions related to accounting for uncertainty in income taxes, These
provisions seek to reduce the diversity in practice associated with certain aspects of measurement and
recognition in accounting for income taxes. These provisions prescribe a recognition threshold and
measurement attribute for the financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax provision that an
entity takes or expects to take in a tax return. Additionally, on de-recognition, classification, interest and
penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosures, and transition, an entity may only recognize or
continue to recognize tax positions that meet a "more likely than not” threshold. The Company recognizes
accrued interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits as a component of income tax
expense. As of September 30, 2022 and 2021, the Company had no accrued interest and penalties
related to uncertain tax positions.

Stock-based compensation

The Company measures and recognizes compensation expense for all share-based awards made to
employees based on estimated fair values on the date of grant. The fair value of each employee stock
option is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. The model requires
management to make a number of assumptions including expected volatility, expected term, risk-free
interest rate, and expected dividends.

Given the Company's limited history, the Company used comparable companies’ calculated historical
volatility to estimate the Company’s expected volatility. The expected term is calculated using the
simplified method taking into consideration the options’ vesting term and contractual terms as the
Company did not have sufficient historical information to develop reasonable expectations about future
exercise patterns and post-vesting employment termination behavior. The risk-free interest rate
assumption is based on published interest rates for U.S. Treasury zero-coupon issues with a remaining
term equal to the expected life assumed at the date of grant appropriate for the terms of the Company’s
stock options. The dividend yield assumption is based on the Company's history and expectation of no
dividend payouts.

10




TriAgenics, Inc.
Motes to Financial Statements

Mote 2 — Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consisted of the following at September 30

2022 2021
Computer equipment $ 16,059 $ 19,787
Furniture & office equipment 19,123 19,123
Leasehold improvements 45,129 45,129
Production equipment 82.250 82,250
Laboratory equipment 224 927 224 927
Total property and equipment 387,488 391,216
Less: accumulated depreciation (313,831) (248,927)
Property and equipment, net $ 73,657 $ 142 289

Depreciation expense for the years ended September 30, 2022 and 2021 was $67,785 and $88.408,
respectively.

Note 3 — Stockholders’ Equity

The Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation established the different classes of stockholders’
equity as follows:

Common stock

As of September 30, 2022 and 2021, the Company had authorized 11,289,325 shares at a par value of
£.001. As of September 30, 2022 and 2021, the Company had 2,000,000 shares issued and outstanding.
The holders of Common Stock are entitled to one vote for each share.

Conversion of common stock to Series A-1 preferred stock

In a Shareholder Action approved February 17, 2020, and a Board Action approved February 18, 2020, it
was agreed that 1,500,000 shares of common stock held in the name of Leigh E. Colby and Judith K.
Colhby, Trustees of the Leigh E. Colby and Judith K. Colby Revocable Living Trust, would be canceled and
1,500,000 shares of Series A-1 Preferred Stock would be issued to replace such canceled common
stock. The newly issued Series A-1 Preferred Stock would be issued in the name of Leigh E. Colby and
Judith K. Colby, Trustees of the Leigh E. Colby and Judith K. Colby Revocable Living Trust.

Series A-1 convertible preferred stock

3,470,000 shares authorized; 3,195,808 and 3,100,000 issued and outstanding at a par value of $.001, at
both September 30, 2022 and 2021. These shares have preferential liquidation rights over common
shareholders in the event of any voluntary or involuntary liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the
Company. These shares may be converted at the option of the holder to shares of Common Stock as
determined by dividing the Series A-1 Original Issue Price by the Series A-1 Conversion Price (initially at
$1.00) in effect at the time of conversion.

11




TriAgenics, Inc.
MNotes to Financial Statements

Note 3 — Stockholders’ Equity (continued)

Series A-2 convertible preferred stock

3,869,325 shares authorized; 3,869,324 issued and outstanding at a par value of $.001, at both
September 30, 2022 and 2021. These shares have preferential liquidation rights over common
shareholders in the event of any voluntary or involuntary liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the
Company. These shares may be converted at the option of the holder to shares of Common Stock as
determined by dividing the Series A-2 Original Issue Price by the Series A-2 Conversion Price (initially at
$1.75) in effect at the time of conversion.

Significant terms of the preferred stock are:

Dividends — The Company shall not declare, pay or set aside any dividends on shares of common stock
of the Company unless the holders of Series A-1 and A-2 Preferred Stock then outstanding receive first,
or simultaneously receive, a dividend on each outstanding share of Series A-1 and Series A-2 Preferred
Stock in an amount at least equal to that dividend per share of Series A-1 and A-2 Preferred Stock as
would equal the product of (a) the dividend payable on each share of such class or series determined, if
applicable, as if all shares of such class or series had been converted into Common Stock and (b) the
number of shares of Common Stock issuable upon conversion of a share of Series A-1 and A-2 Preferred
Stock, in each case calculated on the record date for determination of holders entitled to receive such
dividend.

Voting rights — Each holder of outstanding shares of Series A-1 or Series A-2 Preferred Stock shall be
entitled to cast the number of votes equal to the votes that a holder of the number of shares of Commaon
Stock into which the shares of the Preferred Stock held by such holder are convertible as of the record
date for determining stockholders entitled to vote on such matter would be entitled to cast. As long as the
outstanding shares of Preferred Stock owned or under the control of Inspiros Ventures | SPV-A, L.P.
(“Inspiros”), either directly or through an affiliate, represent at least twenty percent (20%) of all
outstanding shares of capital stock of the corporation (calculated on an as-converted to Common Stock
basis and as adjusted for any stock splits, stock dividends, combinations, subdivisions, recapitalizations
or the like), Inspiros shall be entitied to nominate and elect two (2) directors of this corporation at any
election of directors (the "Preferred Stock Directors™); provided that, if the outstanding shares of Preferred
Stock owned or under the control of Inspiros shall at any time represent less than twenty percent (20%) of
all outstanding shares of capital stock of the corporation but continue to represent at least fifteen percent
(15%0) of all outstanding shares of capital stock of the corporation (calculated on an as-converted to
Commaon Stock basis and as adjusted for any stock splits, stock dividends, combinations, subdivisions,
recapitalizations or the like), Inspiros shall be entitled to nominate and elect one (1) director of the
corporation at any election of directors (in such circumstance, such director shall be referred to as, the
“Preferred Stock Director” and any reference to the Preferred Stock Directors herein shall mean the
Preferred Stock Director singularly). The holders of Preferred Stock (voting as a single class and not as
separate series, and on an as-converted basis) shall be entitled to elect the Preferred Stock Directors.
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TriAgenics, Inc.
Motes to Financial Statements

Mote 3 — Stockholders’ Equity (continued)

As long as the outstanding shares owned or under the control of Leigh Colby represent at least twenty
percent (20%) of all outstanding shares of capital stock of the corporation (calculated on an as-converted
to Commaon Stock basis and as adjusted for any stock splits, stock dividends, combinations, subdivisions,
recapitalizations or the like), Leigh Colby shall be entitled to nominate and elect two (2) directors of this
corporation at any election of directors (the "Common Stock Directors”); provided that, if the outstanding
shares owned or under the control of Leigh Colby shall at any time represent less than twenty percent
(20%) of all outstanding shares of capital stock of the corporation but continue to represent at least ten
percent (10%) of all outstanding shares of capital stock of the corporation (calculated on an as-converted
to Common Stock basis and as adjusted for any stock splits, stock dividends, combinations, subdivisions,
recapitalizations or the like), Leigh Colby shall be entitled to nominate and elect one (1) director of the
corporation at any election of directors (in such circumstance, such director shall be referred to as, the
“Common Stock Director” and any reference to the Common Stock Directors herein shall mean the
Common Stock Director singularly). The holders of Common Stock (voting as a single class) shall be
entitled to elect the Common Stock Directors, For additional board positions the Common and Preferred
Stockholders vote together as a single class. Common and Preferred Stockholders have an obligation to
vote for directors nominated by Inspiros and Leigh Colby. Preferred Stockholders have certain veto power
over certain decisions as defined in the Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of the Company.

Liguidation preference — In the event of any voluntary or involuntary liquidation, dissolution or winding up
of the Company or Deemed Liguidation Event, the holders of shares of Preferred Stock then outstanding
shall be entitled to be paid out of the assets of the Company available for distribution to its stockholders
before any payment shall be made to the holders of Common Stock by reason of their ownership thereof,
an amount per share equal to the greater of (i) the Original Issue Price, subject to appropriate adjustment
in the event of any stock dividend, stock split, combination or other similar recapitalization with respect to
the Preferred Stock, plus any dividends declared but unpaid thereon, or (i) such amount per share as
would have been payable had all shares of Preferred Stock been converted into Common Stock
immediately prior to such liquidation, dissolution, winding up or Deemed Liguidation Event.

If upon any such liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Company or Deemed Liquidation Event, the
assets of the Company available for distribution to its stockholders shall be insufficient to pay the holders
of shares of Preferred Stock the full amount to which they shall be entitled, the holders of shares of
Preferred Stock shall share ratably in any distribution of the assets available for distribution in proportion
to the respective amounts which would otherwise be payable in respect of the shares held by them upon
such distribution if all amounts payable on or with respect to such shares were paid in full. The Series A-1
Original Issue Price shall initially be equal to $1.00. The Series A-2 Original Issue Price shall initially be
equal to $1.75.
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Note 3 — Stockholders’ Equity (continued)

Conversion — Each share of Preferred Stock shall be convertible, at the option of the holder thereof, at
any time and from time to time, and without the payment of additional consideration by the holder thereof,
into such number of fully paid and non-assessable shares of Common Stock as is determined by dividing
the applicable Original Issue Price by the applicable Conversion Price in effect at the time of conversion.
The Series A-1 Conversion Price shall initially be equal to $1.00. The Series A-2 Conversion Price shall
initially be equal to $1.75. In the event of a liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Company or a
Deemed Liguidation Event, the Conversion Rights shall terminate at the close of business on the last full
day preceding the date fixed for the payment of any such amounts distributable on such event to the
holders of Series A-1 and A-2 Preferred Stock.

Note 4 = Stock Compensation Plan

On February 23, 2018, the 2018 Stock Plan was adopted by the Company’s Board of Directors and
approved by the shareholders. In July 2021, upon approval by the Board and preferred shareholders the
2018 Stock Plan increased the number of commaon stock available for the issuance from a total of
882,353 shares to a total of 1,920,000 shares of common stock.

The 2018 Stock Plan provides for stock-based awards to employees, outside directors and consultants
selected by the Company to have an opportunity to acquire a proprietary interest in the success of the
Company. The 2018 Stock Plan provides for both the direct award or sale of shares and for the grant of
options to purchase shares. The options granted to employees currently vest 25% upon the completion of
twelve months of continuous service beginning with the vesting commence date. These options then vest
2.083% upon completion of each month of continuous service thereafter. However, the vesting schedule
for other individuals or any future options is at the discretion of the Board and therefore could have
varying vesting schedules. Options granted under the 2018 Stock Plan are exercisable for a period not to
exceed ten years from the option grant date.

The Company computes the fair value of stock options granted and amortizes it over the respective
vesting periods using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. For the year ended September 30, 2022,
the Black-Scholes model was used to determine the estimated fair market value of each option at the
date of the grant using the following inputs:

Expected term (in years) 6.25

Risk-free interest rate 2.64%
Volatility 24.51%
Dividend yield 0.00%

There is no market for the Company’s equity securities, and the Company is in an emerging industry.
Accordingly, the expected volatility of its share prices was computed in a manner consistent with the
valuation of the Company’s common stock, using historical prices of various public companies in a similar
industry and taking into account the current state of the industry and the expected term. The expected
term is determined using the simplified method.
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Mote 4 — Stock Compensation Plan (continued)

The nisk-free rate i1s based on the U.5. Treasury rate for the expected term of the related options. An
expectation of zero dividends is consistent with the Company’'s expected issuance of dividends. There
were 119,824 and 40,000 options issued under the 2018 Stock Plan during the fiscal years 2022 and
2021, respectively. As of September 30, 2022 and 2021, there were 1,489,618 and 1,479,942 available
for future awards under the 2018 Stock Plan, respectively. The following table summarizes the stock
option activity:

September 30, 2022

Weighted

Number of Average
Shares Exercise Price
Options Outstanding — beginning of year 244,250 $ 1.70
Granted 119,824 1.75

Exercised -
Forfeited/cancelled (129,500) 1.00
2018 Stock Plan QOutstanding — end of year 234 574 1.64
2018 Plan Vested or expected to vest at year-end 102,220 1.50
Unvested Options Outstanding — year-end 132,354 1.75
September 30, 2021

Weighted

Number of Average
Shares Exercise Price
Options Outstanding = beginning of year 428,000 % 1.11
Granted 40,000 1.75
Exercised (95,808) 1.00
Forfeited/cancelled (127,942) 1.47
2018 Stock Plan Outstanding — end of year 244 250 1.22
2018 Plan Vested or expected to vest at year-end 207,367 1.09
Unvested Options Outstanding — year-end 36,883 1.70

Compensation cost charged to operations was $22 644 and $55,298 in the year ended September 30,
2022 and 2021, respectively. As of September 30, 2022, total compensation expense, which had not yet
been recognized, related to non-vested options was $64,137. This amount is expected to be recognized

over the weighted-average period of 3.1 years.
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Mote 5 — Warrants

On May 10, 2019, the 2019 Warrant Plan (Warrant Plan) was adopted by the Company's Board of
Directors and approved by the shareholders. The 2019 Warrant Plan provides for the issuance of a total
of up to 500,000 shares of common stock, subject to limitations whereby the warrants under the Warrant
Plan may not exceed the number of shares that remain available for issuance under the Warrant Plan.

The Warrant Plan provides for the grant of warrants to persons or vendors selected by the Company to
have an opportunity to acquire shares of the Company’'s common stock. 20% of the current warrants vest
upon the Vesting Commencement Date, as defined in each stock warrant agreement, with an additional
20% of the shares vesting on each subsequent annual anniversary of the Vesting Commencement Date
until 100% of the shares granted are eligible for exercise. However, the vesting schedule of any future
warrants is at the discretion of the Board and therefore could have varying vesting schedules. Warrants
granted under the Warrant Plan are exercisable for a period not to exceed ten years from the warrant
grant date.

The Company has accounted for the warrants as free-standing equity instruments under ASC 718 and
have recognized the fair value of the warrants within additional paid in capital on the balance sheet.

During the years ended September 30, 2022 and 2021, the Company converted 129,500 and 127,942
options shares into warrants respectively. The converted option shares were cancelled and the
individuals have no further rights to the benefits offered by such option shares. The individuals received
Stock Warrant Grants in the amount of 129,500 and 127,942 warrant shares under the provisions of the
Warrant Plan respectively. These warrants vested in full on the date of grant and stock compensation
expense related to these converted warrants has been recognized by the Company in full as of the date
of grant within additional paid in capital.

As of September 30, 2022 the Company had outstanding warrants exercisable for 322,442 shares of
common stock as follows:

Weighted

Exercise Mumber of Average
Price Shares Grant Date FV

Grant date

July 1, 2022 $ 1.75 64,750 $ 0.52
January 1, 2022 1.75 64,750 0.52
December 22, 2021 1.75 2,500 0.52
November 15, 2021 1.75 55,000 0.52
July 14, 2021 1.75 127,942 0.38
July 29, 2019 1.75 7,500 0.03

322,442
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Mote 6 — Convertible Notes

Throughout the fiscal years ended September 30, 2021 and 2020, the Company entered into Series A,
Series B, Series C, and Series D convertible promissory notes, including accrued interest, with third party
accredited investors in the amount of $3,195,515 and $3,148,924, respectively. The proceeds were used
to fund operations. The notes bear interest at 6%, compounded annually and do not require monthly
payments. The notes had accrued interest of $158,924 as of September 30, 2020. All Convertible Notes
of $3,195,515, which included accrued interest of $205,515, were converted into Series A-2 Preferred
Stock during the year ended September 30, 2021.

MNote 7 = Income Taxes

Income tax expense was comprised of the following for the years ended September 30:

2022 2021
Current
Federal % - & .
State 150 150
Total current tax expense 150 150
Deferred
Federal . _
State - -
Total deferred tax expense - -
Total tax expense % 150 % 150
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Mote 7 — Income Taxes (continued)

The components of the net deferred tax assets and liabilities are as follows as of September 30:

2022 2021
Deferred tax assets
Met operating loss carryforwards $ 1,589,746 $ 1,226,612
Accruals and reserves 341 1,828
Total deferred tax assets 1,590,087 1,228,440
Deferred tax liabiliies
Property and equipment (3,609) (14,071)
Total deferred tax liabilities (3,609) (14,071)
Valuation allowance (1,586,478) (1,214,369)
MNet deferred tax assets 5 - $ -

The Company has provided a full valuation allowance against its net US deferred tax asset since it is
more likely than not that these future benefits will not be realized.

At September 30, 2022, the Company had federal net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $5.9

million, which do not expire, and state net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $5.9 million,
which will start expiring in 2034 if unused.

The Company's effective tax rate of 0.01% for the years ended September 30, 2022 and 2021 differs
from the statutory tax rate of 21% due to the valuation allowance being recorded by the Company as of
September 30, 2022 and 2021.

Mote 8 = Commitments and Contingencies

Operating lease

On April 18, 2018, the Company signed an office building lease agreement for office space in Redmond,
Oregon, which serves as the Company's headquarters. The term of the lease is 36 months commencing

on October 1, 2018. The lease was extended for a 12-month period beginning October 1, 2021 and was
extended again for an additional 12-month period beginning October 1, 2022.

The estimated future minimum non-cancellable rental payments required related to this lease are as
follows:

Years ending September 30, 2023 5 34,086

The Company paid a $25,329 security deposit in connection with this lease which is included in the
prepaid and other assets on the balance sheet.
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Mote 8 — Commitments and Contingencies (continued)

Other
The Company is subject to legal proceedings and claims that arise in the ordinary course of business.
Management is not aware of any asserted or pending litigation or claims against the Company.

Mote 9 — Subsequent Events

Series A-3 convertible preferred stock

On October 12, 2022 the shareholders authorized 1,666,667 shares of Series A-3 convertible preferred
stock to be issued. Mo Series A-3 convertible preferred stock has been issued and outstanding as of
September 30, 2022. These shares will have preferential liquidation rights over common shareholders in
the event of any voluntary or involuntary liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Company.
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